
 

NOTE TO PERSONS WITH SPECIAL NEEDS: 
The Town of Canton does not discriminate on the basis of disability. Individuals who need auxiliary aids or an interpreter at a Town 

meeting must notify the appropriate department in advance of the meeting as soon as they are able. 

   
 
 
 

AGENDA 
Regular Meeting  

 Canton Planning and Zoning Commission 
Wednesday, May 18, 2016 at 7:30 pm 

Community Center, Room F 
40 Dyer Avenue, Canton, CT 

 
CALL TO ORDER: 
ROLL CALL: 
 
READING OF THE LEGAL NOTICE: 
 

PUBLIC HEARINGS 
 

1. File #445; Apln #1576; 594 Albany Turnpike; Assessor’s Map 25; Parcel 1010594; Zone R-2; Special 
Permit, Section 6.3.F.2, removal of trees 4” or greater in caliper within the Farmington River 
Protection Overlay District; Section 7.5, earthwork and grading; and Section 9.1., Site Plan 
Application; request to construct single family home; David and Jacqueline Mott, applicants/owners 

 
2. File #5; Apln #1582; 150 Torrington Avenue; Assessor’s Map 30; Parcel 5300150; Zone R-1; Section 

7.4.D.3.a., Special Permit; exemptions and modifications to outdoor lighting, and Section 9.1., Site 
Plan Modification; request to install CCTV cameras, site lighting and security fencing; Metropolitan 
District Commission, applicant/owner 
 

3. File #402; Apln #1587; 143+145 Main Street; Assessor’s Map 38; Parcels 3590143; Zone B; Special 
Permit, Section 6.1.E, uses allowed by Special Permit within the Collinsville Business Overlay District; 
and Section 9.1., Site Plan Modification; request to rehabilitate the existing building into a multi-unit 
dwelling; Russell Bush, applicant/owner  
 

REGULAR MEETING 
 

PUBLIC HEARING ACTIONS: 
 
1. File #445; Apln #1576; 594 Albany Turnpike; Assessor’s Map 25; Parcel 1010594; Zone R-2; Special 

Permit, Section 6.3.F.2, removal of trees 4” or greater in caliper within the Farmington River 
Protection Overlay District; Section 7.5, earthwork and grading; and Section 9.1., Site Plan 
Application; request to construct single family home; David and Jacqueline Mott, applicants/owners 

 
2. File #5; Apln #1582; 150 Torrington Avenue; Assessor’s Map 30; Parcel 5300150; Zone R-1; Section 

7.4.D.3.a., Special Permit; exemptions and modifications to outdoor lighting, and Section 9.1., Site 
Plan Modification; request to install CCTV cameras, site lighting and security fencing; Metropolitan 
District Commission, applicant/owner 
 

3. File #402; Apln #1587; 143+145 Main Street; Assessor’s Map 38; Parcels 3590143; Zone B; Special 
Permit, Section 6.1.E, uses allowed by Special Permit within the Collinsville Business Overlay District; 
and Section 9.1., Site Plan Modification; request to rehabilitate the existing building into a multi-unit 
dwelling; Russell Bush, applicant/owner 
 

OLD BUSINESS:  
  
NEW BUSINESS:  
 



NOTE TO PERSONS WITH SPECIAL NEEDS: 
The Town of Canton does not discriminate on the basis of disability. Individuals who need auxiliary aids or an interpreter at a Town 

meeting must notify the appropriate department in advance of the meeting as soon as they are able. 

OTHER BUSINESS: 
 
1. Review minutes from the April 14, 2016 Joint Special Meeting, April 20, 2016 Regular Meeting and  

May 4, 2016 Special Meeting 

2. Discussion of Possible Edits to Zoning Regulations 

3. Discussion of Design Regulations 

4. Discussion of Subdivision Regulations Rewrite 

5. Staff Reports: 

a. Town Planner’s Report 

b. ZEO Report 
 
ADJOURNMENT: 



WORKING NOTES

Regular Meeting
Canton Planning and Zoning Commission

Wednesday, May 18, 2016 at 7:30 pm
Community Center, Room F
40 Dyer Avenue, Canton, CT

CALL TO ORDER: Call to order the Regular Meeting of the Canton Planning and Zoning Commission,
May 18, 2016 at ____ PM

ROLL CALL:
Commissioners Present are: _________________.
Commissioners Absent are: _________________.

David Bondanza – Regular Member
Jonathan Thiesse – Regular Member
Phil Pane – Regular Member
Lans Perry – Regular Member
John Huyghebaert – Regular Member
David Evens – Regular Member
Keith August – Regular Member
Bill Sarmuk – Alternate Member
Kevin Baldwin – Alternate Member
Vacant – Alternate Member

*members indicated they will be absent

A quorum of the Commission is present?
(If a Regular Member is absent: “Mr. _______ is hereby seated for Mr. __________.”)

Modification of Agenda – No Requests

READING OF THE LEGAL NOTICE:

PUBLIC HEARINGS

1. File #445; Apln #1576; 594 Albany Turnpike; Assessor’s Map 25; Parcel 1010594; Zone R-2; Special
Permit, Section 6.3.F.2, removal of trees 4” or greater in caliper within the Farmington River
Protection Overlay District; Section 7.5, earthwork and grading; and Section 9.1., Site Plan
Application; request to construct single family home; David and Jacqueline Mott, applicants/owners

___ Commissioners Seated 1.__________, 2.____________, 3.____________,

4.______________, 5._____________, 6._____________, 7._____________

___ Alternates Seated a._____________, b._______________, c._____________, and for whom

_X__ Applicant Presentation
_X__ Questions by Commission of Applicant
_X__ Allow Recess for Public Review of Presented Documents/ Items (if necessary)
_X__ Open the Floor for Public Comment
_X__ Staff Input



2

___ Additional Questions by Commission of Staff or Applicant
___ Applicant’s Summation/ Rebuttal
___ Close Public Hearing

This matter has an application pending before the Canton IWWA. At the April PZC meeting the
applicant granted an extension of statutory time to allow the PZC hearing to stay open until
tonight’s meeting.

At their May 12, 2016 meeting, the Canton IWWA issued the necessary permit for the
Commission to be able to render a decision.

The applicants have made minor changes to their plan, which has resulted in the removal of a
foundation drain within the FRPO review area, thus limiting the amount of activity under the
Commission’s review. A copy of the revised plan was distributed on 4/18/16.

Suggested Motion:

Motion: to close the public hearing for File #445; Apln. #1576

A motion is made,
is there a second?
All in favor? All Opposed? Any Abstentions?
Motion passes / fails

2. File #5; Apln #1582; 150 Torrington Avenue; Assessor’s Map 30; Parcel 5300150; Zone R-1; Section
7.4.D.3.a., Special Permit; exemptions and modifications to outdoor lighting, and Section 9.1., Site
Plan Modification; request to install CCTV cameras, site lighting and security fencing; Metropolitan
District Commission, applicant/owner

___ Commissioners Seated 1.__________, 2.____________, 3.____________,

4.______________, 5._____________, 6._____________, 7._____________

___ Alternates Seated a._____________, b._______________, c._____________, and for whom

The public hearing opens this evening. The Commission has 35 days to close the hearing (June
21

st
, 2016)

___ Applicant Presentation
___ Questions by Commission of Applicant
___ Allow Recess for Public Review of Presented Documents/ Items (if necessary)
___ Open the Floor for Public Comment
___ Staff Input
___ Additional Questions by Commission of Staff or Applicant
___ Applicant’s Summation/ Rebuttal
___ Close Public Hearing

Motions for consideration:

Motion: to close the public hearing for File #5; Apln. #1582

Or

Motion: to continue the public hearing for File #5; Apln. #1582

A motion is made,



3

is there a second?
All in favor? All Opposed? Any Abstentions?
Motion passes / fails

3. File #402; Apln #1587; 143+145 Main Street; Assessor’s Map 38; Parcels 3590143; Zone B; Special
Permit, Section 6.1.E, uses allowed by Special Permit within the Collinsville Business Overlay District;
and Section 9.1., Site Plan Modification; request to rehabilitate the existing building into a multi-unit
dwelling; Russell Bush, applicant/owner

The opening of this hearing has to be postponed to June 15, 2016. Signs are posted at the
meeting room entrances advising the public of this postponement.

Motion: to postpone the opening of the public hearing for File #402; Apln #1587 to the
Commission’s June 22

nd
2016 regular meeting

REGULAR MEETING

PUBLIC HEARING ACTIONS:

1. File #445; Apln #1576; 594 Albany Turnpike; Assessor’s Map 25; Parcel 1010594; Zone R-2; Special
Permit, Section 6.3.F.2, removal of trees 4” or greater in caliper within the Farmington River
Protection Overlay District; Section 7.5, earthwork and grading; and Section 9.1., Site Plan
Application; request to construct single family home; David and Jacqueline Mott, applicants/owners

___ Discussion
___ Do I have a motion?

Suggested Motion:

Moved that the Commission hereby approves File #445; Apln #1576; 594 Albany Turnpike;
Assessor’s Map 25; Parcel 1010594; Zone R-2; Special Permit, Section 6.3.F.2, removal of trees
4” or greater in caliper within the Farmington River Protection Overlay District; Section 7.5,
earthwork and grading; and Section 9.1., Site Plan Application; request to construct single family
home; David and Jacqueline Mott, applicants/owners

This approval with conditions and modifications is made, in part, on the basis of, and the
Commission’s reliance upon, the application form dated February 12, 2016; information received
at a public hearing commenced on March 16, 2016, continued to April 20, 2016, and continued to
May 18, 2016 and closed on that date; and upon the following documentation submitted by the
Applicant or others during the course of the proceedings on the application:

Drawings:

1. Sheet 1; Zoning Location Survey; 594 Albany Turnpike; Prepared by Robert Green
Associates, LLC; Prepared for David and Jacqueline Mott; Dated December 18, 2015;
Revised February 9, 2016

2. Sheet 2; Miscellaneous Notes & Details; 594 Albany Turnpike; Prepared by Robert Green
Associates, LLC; Prepared for David and Jacqueline Mott; Dated December 18, 2015;
Revised February 9, 2016

3. Sheet 3; Zoning Location Survey; 594 Albany Turnpike; Prepared by Robert Green
Associates, LLC; Prepared for David and Jacqueline Mott; Dated December 18, 2015;
Revised April 15, 2016



4

4. Sheet 4; Miscellaneous Notes & Details; 594 Albany Turnpike; Prepared by Robert Green
Associates, LLC; Prepared for David and Jacqueline Mott; Dated December 18, 2015;
Revised April 15, 2016

5. Sheet 5; Development Plan; Route 44; Prepared by Joseph Adams & Associates; Prepared
for Casey Heights; June 1983; Revised February 7, 1986

Correspondence:

1. Town of Canton Planning/Zoning Development Application – File #445; Apln #1576; 594
Albany Turnpike; Assessor’s Map 25; Parcel 1010594; Zone R-2; Special Permit, Section
6.3.F.2, removal of trees 4” or greater in caliper within the Farmington River Protection
Overlay District; Section 7.5, earthwork and grading; and Site Plan Application, Section 9.1.;
request to construct single family home; David and Jacqueline Mott, applicants/owners

2. Site Plan Application checklist
3. Special Permit Application checklist
4. Copy of payment; check #6054
5. FVHD approval; dated 1/29/16
6. Proposed scope of work for tree removal by Bristol’s Tree Service, LLC; dated 2/3/16
7. Abutters map
8. List of abutters
9. Affidavit for posting of public hearing sign per Section 9.9.F of Zoning Regulations; dated

2/23/16
10. Photo depicting placement of public hearing sign
11. Copy of the abutter notice sent to abutting property owners; dated 2/23/16
12. Photographs of certified mailing receipts
13. Municipal abutter notice sent to the Town of New Hartford; dated 2/23/16
14. Aerial photograph of property (2 total)
15. Photograph depicting elevation of property
16. Town of Canton legal notice
17. Proof of legal notice from the Hartford Courant; dated 3/1/16
18. Draft minutes from the 3/16/16 PZC regular meeting
19. Draft minutes from the 3/10/16 IWWA regular meeting
20. Letter from the Farmington River Coordinating Committee to the Town of Canton Board of

Selectmen regarding proposed residential development within the River Protection Overlay
Zone; dated 4/11/16

21. Email communication between Liz Lacy of the Farmington River Coordinating Committee and
Neil Pade regarding FRCC concerns; dated 4/12/16

22. Email from Dave Mott to Neil Pade regarding a revised aerial photo; dated 4/20/16
23. Aerial photograph; received by the Land Use Office via email on 4/20/16
24. Letter from Sarah Faulkner to the PZC; dated 4/20/16; received at the public hearing on

4/20/16
25. Draft minutes from the 4/20/16 PZC regular meeting
26. Letter from Eileen Fielding of the Farmington River Coordinating Committee to Sarah

Faulkner; dated 4/27/16
27. Signed consent for extension of statutory time (CGS, Chapter 8-7d); received 5/6/16
28. Email from Neil Pade to Renee Narducci pertaining to Eileen’ Fielding’s 5/12/16 letter to the

Canton IWWA
29. Letter from Eileen Fielding of the Farmington River Coordinating Committee to the Canton

IWWA; dated 5/12/16
30. Email from Neil Pade to Renee Narducci pertaining to the PZC draft motion for consideration;

dated 5/12/16

This approval with conditions and modifications is granted because the Commission finds that the
application, as conditioned and modified by and inclusive of the stipulations of this approval,
would comply with the following:



5

1. The property is an approved building lot;
2. The developable area of the property is constrained by a 75’ ROW to the MDC;
3. The area of the property in which the proposed structure is to be located is relatively bare/

limited ground cover and vegetation in its present condition;
4. The applicant has agreed to mitigate potential disturbances within the FRPO review area that

may be affected by the installation of the deck and building foundation;

This approval is effective June 7, 2016 (20 Days from approval date) and UPON THE
RECORDING OF AN APPROVAL LETTER AND A CERTIFICATE OF ACTION WITH THE
TOWN CLERK.

The Commission hereby grants this approval subject to the following conditions, modifications,
restrictions, and safeguards:

1. The conditions of the Canton IWWA permit issued on May 12, 2016 shall be incorporated by
reference;

2. The applicant shall plant four (4) trees within the FRPO subject to the review and approval of
the ZEO;

3. A mylar recording is NOT required;
4.
5.
6. All work in connection with this site plan shall be completed within five years after the

approval, or May 18, 2020 in accordance with Section 9.1.G.2 of the regulations;
7. The failure to record this special permit within twelve (12) months of approval shall void the

special permit in accordance with Section 9.2.H.1 of the regulations;
8. The approved use must be conducted on the site within thirty-six (36) months from the date

of approval or the approval shall expire.
9. This approval shall be binding upon the Applicant / developer, heirs, assigns, and grantees.

A motion is made, is there a second?
All in favor? All Opposed? Any Abstentions?
Motion passes / fails

A motion is made,
is there a second?
All in favor? All Opposed? Any Abstentions?
Motion passes / fails

2. File #5; Apln #1582; 150 Torrington Avenue; Assessor’s Map 30; Parcel 5300150; Zone R-1; Section
7.4.D.3.a., Special Permit; exemptions and modifications to outdoor lighting, and Section 9.1., Site
Plan Modification; request to install CCTV cameras, site lighting and security fencing; Metropolitan
District Commission, applicant/owner

___ Discussion
___ Do I have a motion?

Draft Motion:

Moved that the Commission hereby approves File #5; Apln #1582; 150 Torrington Avenue;
Assessor’s Map 30; Parcel 5300150; Zone R-1; Section 7.4.D.3.a., Special Permit; exemptions
and modifications to outdoor lighting, and Section 9.1., Site Plan Modification; request to install
CCTV cameras, site lighting and security fencing; Metropolitan District Commission,
applicant/owner



6

This approval with conditions and modifications is made, in part, on the basis of, and the
Commission’s reliance upon, the application form dated March 21, 2016; information received at
a public hearing commenced on May 18, 2016 and closed on that date; and upon the following
documentation submitted by the Applicant or others during the course of the proceedings on the
application:

Drawings:

1. Sheet 1 of 3; Site Electrical & Data Infrastructure Improvements; Canton and New Hartford;
Prepared by The Metropolitan District; Prepared for the Nepaug Dam & Collinsville Water
Treatment Facility; Dated October 27, 2015

2. Sheet 2 of 3; Site Electrical & Data Infrastructure Improvements; Canton and New Hartford;
Prepared by The Metropolitan District; Prepared for the Nepaug Dam & Collinsville Water
Treatment Facility; Dated October 27, 2015

3. Sheet 3 of 3; Site Electrical & Data Infrastructure Improvements; Canton and New Hartford;
Prepared by The Metropolitan District; Prepared for the Nepaug Dam & Collinsville Water
Treatment Facility; Dated October 27, 2015

Correspondence:

1. Town of Canton – Zoning Development Application for File #5; Apln #1582; 150 Torrington
Avenue; Assessor’s Map 30; Parcel 5300150; Zone R-1; Section 9.1., Site Plan Modification;
request to install CCTV cameras, site lighting and security fencing; Metropolitan District
Commission, applicant/owner

2. Site plan application checklist
3. Email from Chris Levesque to Renee Narducci; dated 3/18/16
4. Narrative
5. HySecurity SlideDriver

TM
Slide Gate Operator sales slick

6. Chain link fence specifications; dated 5/28/03
7. Hapco light pole specifications
8. Lumark lighting specifications
9. Lumark lighting images (2 total)
10. Copy of approval letter for IWWA File #12-14-1118AA; dated 12/23/14
11. Copy of payment; check #32022740
12. Email from Neil Pade to Renee Narducci and Emily Anyzeski regarding application

modifications; dated 4/6/16
13. Email from Renee Narducci to Chris Levesque regarding application modifications; dated

4/8/16
14. Email from Chris Levesque to Renee Narducci regarding lighting information; dated 4/18/16
15. Cooper Lighting Photometric Survey; dated 4/18/16 (2 pages)
16. Abutter list
17. Sign affidavit; dated 4/22/16
18. Copy of the abutter notice; dated 4/25/16
19. Certificates of mailing

This approval with conditions and modifications is granted because the Commission finds that the
application, as conditioned and modified by and inclusive of the stipulations of this approval,
would comply with the following:

1.
2.
3.

This approval is effective June 7, 2016 (20 Days from approval date) and UPON THE
RECORDING OF AN APPROVAL LETTER AND A CERTIFICATE OF ACTION WITH THE
TOWN CLERK.



7

The Commission hereby grants this approval subject to the following conditions, modifications,
restrictions, and safeguards:

1. A mylar recording IS/ IS NOT required;?
2.
3.
4. All work in connection with this site plan shall be completed within five years after the

approval, or May 18, 2020 in accordance with Section 9.1.G.2 of the regulations;
5. The failure to record this special permit within twelve (12) months of approval shall void the

special permit in accordance with Section 9.2.H.1 of the regulations;
6. The approved use must be conducted on the site within thirty-six (36) months from the date

of approval or the approval shall expire.
7. This approval shall be binding upon the Applicant / developer, heirs, assigns, and grantees.

A motion is made, is there a second?
All in favor? All Opposed? Any Abstentions?
Motion passes / fails

3. File #402; Apln #1587; 143+145 Main Street; Assessor’s Map 38; Parcels 3590143; Zone B; Special
Permit, Section 6.1.E, uses allowed by Special Permit within the Collinsville Business Overlay District;
and Section 9.1., Site Plan Modification; request to rehabilitate the existing building into a multi-unit
dwelling; Russell Bush, applicant/owner – This item is postponed

OLD BUSINESS: None

NEW BUSINESS: None

OTHER BUSINESS:

1. Review minutes from the April 14, 2016 Joint Special Meeting, April 20, 2016 Regular Meeting and
May 4, 2016 Special Meeting

2. Discussion of Possible Edits to Zoning Regulations – Staff is working on regulation for electronic
message board signs, and regulations pertaining to signs in Collinsville Business District Overlay and
update of ZR regarding DRT references.

3. Discussion of Design Regulations – Scheduling of next Special Meeting?

4. Discussion of Subdivision Regulations Rewrite – Seeking final comments on SR draft and Public
Improvements Standards. Outstanding questions asked on 5/9/16:
a. Currently the SR does not include a process for conditional subdivisions. Does the Commission

want to incorporate this process allowed but not required by statute? (I tend to dislike it but will
defer to the Commission

b. the draft does not include a process for subdivisions on private roads/ streets. Do we want the
SR to include this process?

c. Does the Commission wish for future subdivisions in the R-3 zone to be Open Space/ Cluster
Subdivisions as the default? (note our regulations do grant density bonuses.)

d. Does the Commission wish, prior to final approval of a subdivision plan have receipt of all the
legal documents, easements, etc… proving the necessary rights are in order for the subdivision
to function/ be built?

5. Staff Reports:
a. Town Planner’s Report
b. ZEO Report

ADJOURNMENT:



- 1 -

Exhibit List for:

File #445; Apln #1576; 594 Albany Turnpike; Assessor’s Map 25; Parcel 1010594; Zone R-2; Special Permit,
Section 6.3.F.2, removal of trees 4” or greater in caliper within the Farmington River Protection Overlay
District; Section 7.5, earthwork and grading; and Site Plan Application, Section 9.1.; request to construct
single family home; David and Jacqueline Mott, applicants/owners

List as of May 16, 2016

List of Drawings

1. Sheet 1; Zoning Location Survey; 594 Albany Turnpike; Prepared by Robert Green Associates, LLC;
Prepared for David and Jacqueline Mott; Dated December 18, 2015; Revised February 9, 2016

2. Sheet 2; Miscellaneous Notes & Details; 594 Albany Turnpike; Prepared by Robert Green Associates,
LLC; Prepared for David and Jacqueline Mott; Dated December 18, 2015; Revised February 9, 2016

3. Sheet 3; Zoning Location Survey; 594 Albany Turnpike; Prepared by Robert Green Associates, LLC;
Prepared for David and Jacqueline Mott; Dated December 18, 2015; Revised April 15, 2016

4. Sheet 4; Miscellaneous Notes & Details; 594 Albany Turnpike; Prepared by Robert Green Associates,
LLC; Prepared for David and Jacqueline Mott; Dated December 18, 2015; Revised April 15, 2016

5. Sheet 5; Development Plan; Route 44; Prepared by Joseph Adams & Associates; Prepared for Casey
Heights; June 1983; Revised February 7, 1986

Correspondence:

1. Town of Canton Planning/Zoning Development Application – File #445; Apln #1576; 594 Albany Turnpike;
Assessor’s Map 25; Parcel 1010594; Zone R-2; Special Permit, Section 6.3.F.2, removal of trees 4” or
greater in caliper within the Farmington River Protection Overlay District; Section 7.5, earthwork and
grading; and Site Plan Application, Section 9.1.; request to construct single family home; David and
Jacqueline Mott, applicants/owners

2. Site Plan Application checklist
3. Special Permit Application checklist
4. Copy of payment; check #6054
5. FVHD approval; dated 1/29/16
6. Proposed scope of work for tree removal by Bristol’s Tree Service, LLC; dated 2/3/16
7. Abutters map
8. List of abutters
9. Affidavit for posting of public hearing sign per Section 9.9.F of Zoning Regulations; dated 2/23/16
10. Photo depicting placement of public hearing sign
11. Copy of the abutter notice sent to abutting property owners; dated 2/23/16
12. Photographs of certified mailing receipts
13. Municipal abutter notice sent to the Town of New Hartford; dated 2/23/16
14. Aerial photograph of property (2 total)
15. Photograph depicting elevation of property
16. Town of Canton legal notice
17. Proof of legal notice from the Hartford Courant; dated 3/1/16
18. Draft minutes from the 3/16/16 PZC regular meeting
19. Draft minutes from the 3/10/16 IWWA regular meeting
20. Letter from the Farmington River Coordinating Committee to the Town of Canton Board of Selectmen

regarding proposed residential development within the River Protection Overlay Zone; dated 4/11/16
21. Email communication between Liz Lacy of the Farmington River Coordinating Committee and Neil

Pade regarding FRCC concerns; dated 4/12/16
22. Email from Dave Mott to Neil Pade regarding a revised aerial photo; dated 4/20/16
23. Aerial photograph; received by the Land Use Office via email on 4/20/16
24. Letter from Sarah Faulkner to the PZC; dated 4/20/16; received at the public hearing on 4/20/16
25. Draft minutes from the 4/20/16 PZC regular meeting



26. Letter from Eileen Fielding of the Farmington River Coordinating Committee to Sarah Faulkner; dated
4/27/16

27. Signed consent for extension of statutory time (CGS, Chapter 8-7d); received 5/6/16
28. Email from Neil Pade to Renee Narducci pertaining to Eileen’ Fielding’s 5/12/16 letter to the Canton

IWWA
29. Letter from Eileen Fielding of the Farmington River Coordinating Committee to the Canton IWWA;

dated 5/12/16
30. Email from Neil Pade to Renee Narducci pertaining to the PZC draft motion for consideration; dated

5/12/16





































Archived: Friday, April 15, 2016 11:30:06 AM
Subject: FW: Residential development proposed in Farmington River Protection Zone
Importance: Normal

-------- Original message --------
From: "Lacy, Elizabethann" <liz_lacy@nps.gov>
Date: 4/12/2016 8:20 AM (GMT-05:00)
To: "Pade, Neil" <NPade@TownofCantonCT.org>
Cc: "Anyzeski, Emily" <EAnyzeski@TownofCantonCT.org>, "Hill, Leslee"
<LHill@TownofCantonCT.org>, Alison Murdock <murdoali@yahoo.com>, Carol Youell
<cyouell@themdc.com>, Dan Bowler <dbowler2@hotmail.com>, David Sinish
<dsinish@comcast.net>, Eileen Fielding <efielding@frwa.org>, Ella McPherson
<e.mcpherson_15@yahoo.com>, "Hansen, Lance" <Lance.Hansen@ct.gov>, Jamie Fosburgh
<jamie_fosburgh@nps.gov>, Joe Merlino <jmerlinojr@gmail.com>, Mario Santoro work
<mario_santoro@uhc.com>, Mark Quinlan <mark.quinlan@ct.gov>, Nick Masi
<flym123@sbcglobal.net>, Paul Pinette FRAA <paulpinette@comcast.net>, Roger Behrens
<roger.behrens@charter.net>, Stephan Bastrzycki <mail@planetzerogravity.com>, Susan Peterson
<susan.peterson@ct.gov>, Tim Anthony <Tanthony@themdc.com>, Tom Stanton
<tstanton@litchfieldarc.org>
Subject: Re: Residential development proposed in Farmington River Protection Zone

Hi Neil,

Thanks for your note. FRCC was made aware of this by David Sinish our FRWA Rep. who resides in
Canton and serves on the Canton IWC. He has visited the site. David brought plans to our last FRCC
meeting which we reviewed and discussed. As you know, important local board decisions are coming
up on this proposed development in the River Protection zone and FRCC wanted to make sure the
town considers the impact of its decisions. As for the minutes of meetings where this has been
discussed, we will provide those as they become available. Our website is not maintained frequently -
so a request for minutes through email or phone is a better choice.

Thanks,
Liz

~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~
Liz Lacy
National Park Service
Community Planner/River Manager
Farmington and Westfield Wild & Scenic Rivers

100 East River Road/P.O. Box 395
Pleasant Valley, CT 06063
860-379-0282



MA Field Office:
Westfield State University
Westfield, MA

cell: 860-670-5881

Farmington River Coordinating Committee (FRCC) website = www.farmingtonriver.org
Farmington River Steward website = www.FarmingtonRiverSteward.org
W&S Westfield River Committee website = www.westfieldriverwildscenic.org
General Wild and Scenic Information = www.nps.gov/wsr or www.rivers.gov

On Mon, Apr 11, 2016 at 2:57 PM, Pade, Neil <NPade@townofcantonct.org> wrote:
Hi Liz:

This is the first I am being made aware of the FRCC’s interests in this application and I do not recall a
transmittal of the file exhibits being made to the FRCC. Given the testimony provided and bearing it may
have, could you please advise me on the date at which the FRCC reviewed the application, whether or not the
file exhibits were presented and reviewed, and whether the property owners and/ or a town representative
were in attendance or made aware of this opportunity?

Also it would be greatly appreciated if you could provide the Canton Land Use Office with a copy of the
minutes of that meeting? (The last minutes available on the website are from 2013)

Thanks so much for your assistance!

Best,

Neil S. Pade AICP
Director of Planning and Community Development
Town of Canton, Connecticut
4 Market Street
PO Box 168
Collinsville, CT 06022-0168
860-693-7891 Phone
860-693-7884 Fax
npade@townofcantonct.org
www.townofcantonct.org

From: Lacy, Elizabethann [mailto:liz_lacy@nps.gov]
Sent: Monday, April 11, 2016 2:11 PM
To: Anyzeski, Emily; Hill, Leslee
Cc: Liz Lacy; Alison Murdock; Carol Youell; Dan Bowler; David Sinish; Eileen Fielding; Ella McPherson; Hansen,
Lance; Jamie Fosburgh; Joe Merlino; Mario Santoro work; Mark Quinlan; Nick Masi; Paul Pinette FRAA; Roger
Behrens; Stephan Bastrzycki; Susan Peterson; Tim Anthony; Tom Stanton; Pade, Neil
Subject: Residential development proposed in Farmington River Protection Zone

Dear Ms. Anyzeski and Ms. Hill,



Attached is a letter of concern from the Farmington River Coordinating Committee regarding a
residential development proposed on Albany Turnpike on the banks of the Farmington Wild and
Scenic River.

Thank you for your consideration,

Liz Lacy
FRCC Director/NPS Representative

~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~
Liz Lacy
National Park Service
Community Planner/River Manager
Farmington and Westfield Wild & Scenic Rivers

100 East River Road/P.O. Box 395
Pleasant Valley, CT 06063
860-379-0282

MA Field Office:
Westfield State University
Westfield, MA

cell: 860-670-5881

Farmington River Coordinating Committee (FRCC) website = www.farmingtonriver.org
Farmington River Steward website = www.FarmingtonRiverSteward.org
W&S Westfield River Committee website = www.westfieldriverwildscenic.org
General Wild and Scenic Information = www.nps.gov/wsr or www.rivers.gov



FRCC 100 East River Road Barkhamsted, CT   860-379-0282   www.FarmingtonRiver.org 1 

FRCC - Appointed 
Representatives: 
 
Barkhamsted  
Mario Santoro 
Roger Behrens alternate 
 
Canton  
Lance Hansen 
Mark Quinlan alternate 
 
Colebrook  
Ross Delaney 
Tom Stanton alternate 
 
Hartland 
Dan Bowler 
 
New Hartford 
Alison Murdock 
Joe Merlino alternate 
 
CT DEEP 
Susan Peterson 
 
Farmington River Anglers 
Association 
Nick Masi 
Paul Pinette alternate 
 
Farmington River Watershed 
Association 
David Sinish 
Eileen Fielding alternate 
 
Metropolitan District 
Commission 
Tim Anthony 
Carol Youell alternate 
 
National Park Service 
Liz Lacy 
Jamie Fosburgh alternate 
 

 
 

 

 
April 11, 2016 

Town of Canton 
Board of Selectmen 
Planning and Zoning Commission  
 
RE: Proposed Residential Development within River Protection Overlay Zone   
  
Dear Members of the Board and Commissioners: 
 
The Farmington River Coordinating Committee (FRCC) was established when 14 miles of the upper 
Farmington River were designated as a National Wild & Scenic River – August 26, 1994.  The FRCC 
comprises representatives from each of the five towns adjacent to the Farmington River (Barkhamsted, 
Canton, Colebrook, Hartland, and New Hartford) as well as representatives from the Farmington River 
Anglers Association, the Farmington River Watershed Association, the Metropolitan District 
Commission, the CT Department of Energy and Environmental Protection, and the National Park 
Service.  The FRCC embodies an important partnership among the riverfront towns and others to 
provide stewardship of the Farmington River and its upper watershed.   
 
In fulfilling its Congressionally-mandated duties, the FRCC is responsible for overseeing activities on the 
river and implementing the Upper Farmington River Management Plan. This Management Plan was 
developed in 1993 by the Farmington River Study Committee with extensive input from citizens and 
officials in Canton and the other riverfront towns and nonprofit and governmental entities who have a 
stake in the health of the river.  The Management Plan was updated in 2013 by the FRCC with much 
public input and approval by all members of the FRCC. In addition to helping craft the Plan, member 
towns voluntarily adopted the 100 foot buffer prior to W&S designation, and thus made a commitment 
to honor the protections of the designation. (Please access the plan at www.FarmingtonRiver.org) 
 
With the findings and recommendations of the Upper Farmington River Management Plan as our base, 
the FRCC would like to address the recent proposal of the construction of a residence in the River 
Protection Overlay Zone in Canton at 594 Albany Turnpike.  While the FRCC understands that the 
authority and decision-making on this issue lies with the town and its local boards and commissions, it 
also recognizes that there is a responsibility to maintain the buffer zone along the river.  Allowing 
development this close to the river compromises the integrity of the buffer zone and sets a bad 
precedent for others to follow.  This could create a cumulative impairment of that buffer zone. 
 
The buffer zone protects the river from runoff such as fertilizers and pesticides – as well as provides 
vegetation and forest cover to maintain the cool temperatures needed to guarantee the important cold 
water fish habitat for which the upper Farmington is known.  The proposed development could see 
excessive tree removal as well as remove a scenic vista from those recreating on the river. 
 
We encourage you to reconsider allowing a development of this kind within the 100 foot river 
protection zone.  Please keep your town’s promise to the river, your neighboring towns, and all those 
who benefit from a healthy Farmington W&S River. 
 

Sincerely, 

Roger Behrens 
Roger Behrens, Chair, Barkhamsted alternate, Farmington River Coordinating Committee 
 
Cc: Inland Wetlands Commission 
Farmington River Coordinating Committee 

http://www.farmingtonriver.org/


DRAFT MINUTES
Regular Meeting

Canton Inland Wetlands and Watercourses Agency
March 10, 2016 at 7:00 p.m.

Library/Community Center, Room F

CALL TO ORDER – The regular meeting of March 10, 2016 was called to order at 7:04 p.m.

ROLL CALL – Chairman David Shepard, David Sinish, Rich Vandebogart and Al Bombassei
ABSENT – Robert Bahre

ALSO PRESENT – Assistant Town Planner Emily Anyzeski and Land Use Coordinator Renee Narducci

A quorum of the agency is present.

PUBLIC COMMENT NOT RELATED TO AGENDA ITEM – None

MOTION: D. Shepard moved to amend the agenda to add Item #2 under NEW BUSINESS, File #03-16-
1136; 39 Dyer Avenue; Assessor’s Map 30; Parcel 2340039; Zone R-1; request to remove two trees
within wetland boundaries; Tom Richardson, applicant; Town of Canton, owner. A. Bombassei seconded
the motion, which passed unanimously 4-0-0.

MOTION: D. Shepard moved to discuss Item #1 under NEW BUSINESS, File #02-16-1135; 594 Albany
Turnpike; Assessor’s Map 25; Parcel 1010594; Zone R-2; request to construct a single family home;
David and Jacqueline Mott, applicants/owners, first. D. Sinish seconded the motion, which passed
unanimously 4-0-0.

NEW BUSINESS

1. File #02-16-1135; 594 Albany Turnpike; Assessor’s Map 25; Parcel 1010594; Zone R-2; request
to construct a single family home; David and Jacqueline Mott, applicants/owners – E. Anyzeski
provided an overview of the application to the agency, which was discussed informally at the
February 11, 2016 regular meeting. The property owners, David and Jacqueline Mott, were present in
order to provide background on the location of the proposed home and answer any questions the
agency had. D. Mott summarized the characteristics of the lot and the constraints that limit possible
development locations. The proposed location of the home is at the edge of the Upland Review Area;
however, the deck will be within said zone, roughly 86 feet away from the edge of the wetlands. John
Tirillo of Groundworks Unlimited, LLC, was present to discuss the excavation process for the lot and
provide additional information regarding the proposed footing drains, grading, erosion and
sedimentation controls, etc. In review of the site plan the agency noted that the silt fence, although
present on the drawing, should be called out. There was a consensus among the agency that a site
walk occur in order to gather more insight on the property.

MOTION: D. Shepard moved to receive the application and continue to a site walk on Thursday,
March 31, 2016 at 8:00 a.m. D. Sinish seconded the motion, which passed unanimously 4-0-0.

2. File #03-16-1136; 39 Dyer Avenue; Assessor’s Map 30; Parcel 2340039; Zone R-1; request to
remove two trees within wetland boundaries; Tom Richardson, applicant; Town of Canton,
owner – D. Shepard provided an explanation as to why this application is before the agency, and
how there is a need to establish a subcommittee that can make executive decisions on behalf of the
agency when there is a potentially dangerous situation.



MOTION: D. Shepard moved to APPROVE File #03-16-1136; 39 Dyer Avenue; Assessor’s Map 30;
Parcel 2340039; Zone R-1; request to remove two trees within wetland boundaries; Tom Richardson,
applicant; Town of Canton, owner, subject to the following conditions:

1. Granting a waiver on Sections 7.4D, 7.4E, 7.4G, 7.4H, 7.4M and 7.5F of the application;
2. The permit is valid for a period not to exceed two (2) years from the date of issue; and
3. The application shall be amended to incorporate the property information for 76 Simonds Avenue.

D. Sinish seconded the motion, which passed unanimously 4-0-0.

OLD BUSINESS

1. Discussion of Shallot Meadow Subdivision and 188 Bahre Corner Road – D. Shepard reiterated
the procedural steps for this discussion, and how the agency needs to focus on the possible violation.
The agency reflected upon the site walk that occurred on March 1, 2016, and stated their
observations. Having started on Shallot Meadow, the agency followed the water flow to the drainage
system that crosses over onto 188 Bahre Corner Road, which depicted evidence of a wetland. An
issue regarding the buildup of material seemed apparent where the farm road crossed wetlands;
however, it cannot be determined how it got there or how long it has been there. A. Bombassei noted
that it is hard to determine the current level of wetlands versus what existed in the past. Based on the
discussion, there appears to be no wetlands violation at this time and pre-existing conditions before
the adoption of the wetlands act would be legal. There was a consensus among the agency that there
is not enough evidence to pursue this violation further.

MOTION: D. Sinish moved to schedule a joint meeting between the Canton Inland Wetlands and
Watercourses Agency and the Canton Planning and Zoning Commission for an Executive Session. D.
Shepard seconded the motion, which passed unanimously 4-0-0.

OTHER BUSINESS

1. Approve Minutes of the January 14, 2016 Regular Meeting and February 11, 2016 Regular Meeting

MOTION: D. Shepard moved to approve the minutes of the January 14, 2016 regular meeting as
amended. D. Sinish seconded the motion, which passed 3-0-1. R. Vandebogart abstained.

MOTION: D. Shepard moved to approve the minutes of the February 11, 2016 regular meeting as
amended. D. Sinish seconded the motion, which passed unanimously 4-0-0.

2. Applications Received After Agenda Posted – None

3. Authorized Agent – None

4. Any Other Recent Enforcement Issues – E. Anyzeski informed the agency that she has received
concerns regarding the appearance of soap or foam within a stream on Scoville Road. The
homeowner that first noticed this issue stated that the foam appears a couple times a week early in
the morning. E. Anyzeski stated that she has reached out to Darcy Winther at DEEP and received
feedback regarding possible causes. The agency discussed the likelihood of soap being the culprit
and how foam is a natural occurrence within many bodies of water. It was suggested that the
individual who brought this before the town collect a sample for a further analysis.

5. Staff Report – E. Anyzeski informed the agency that Director of Public Works Robert Martin met with
the Cherry Brook Garden Club in order to discuss potential projects for the year. Some of the
proposed tasks include working within wetland areas; however, it was concluded that the projects are
considered agricultural and would not need agency approval. D. Shepard discussed the POCD and
D. Sinish provided an update from the March 9, 2016 Board of Selectmen meeting. The agency



requested that E. Anyzeski reach out to DPW in order to follow-up with the roadside herbicide
management plan and schedule for 2016.

ADJOURNMENT – MOTION: D. Shepard moved to adjourn the meeting at 9:25 p.m. D. Sinish seconded
the motion, which passed unanimously 4-0-0.

Respectfully Submitted,
Renee Narducci, Land Use Coordinator



   
 
 
 

DRAFT MINUTES 
Regular Meeting  

 Canton Planning and Zoning Commission 
Wednesday, March 16, 2016 at 7:30 pm 

Community Center, Room F 
40 Dyer Avenue, Canton, CT 

 
 
CALL TO ORDER: The Regular Meeting of Canton Planning & Zoning Commission on March 16, 2016 
was called to order at 7:30 p.m. 
 
PRESENT: Jonathan Thiesse, David Bondanza, David Evens, Phil Pane, John Huyghebaert, Lansford 
Perry and Kevin Baldwin 
ABSENT: David Freeman, Bill Sarmuk and Keith August 
ALSO PRESENT: Town Planner Neil Pade and Land Use Coordinator Renee Narducci 
 
A quorum of the Commission is present. 
 
Mr. Baldwin is hereby seated for Mr. August 
 
MODIFICATION OF AGENDA:  
 
MOTION: Mr. Thiesse moved to add to OTHER BUSINESS Item # 6, Review of communication from the 
Town Attorney regarding File #524; Shallot Meadow Subdivision and possible scheduling of a special 
meeting. Mr. Pane seconded the motion, which passed unanimously 7-0-0. 
 

PUBLIC HEARINGS 
 
READING OF THE LEGAL NOTICE: Read by Mr. Pane 

 
1. File #445; Apln #1576; 594 Albany Turnpike; Assessor’s Map 25; Parcel 1010594; Zone R-2; 

Special Permit, Section 6.3.F.2, removal of trees 4” or greater in caliper within the Farmington 
River Protection Overlay District; Section 7.5, earthwork and grading; and Section 9.1., Site 
Plan Application; request to construct single family home; David and Jacqueline Mott, 
applicants/owners – The property owners, David and Jacqueline Mott, were present in order to 
provide background on the location of the proposed home and answer any questions the commission 
had. D. Mott summarized the characteristics of the lot and the constraints that limit possible 
development locations. J. Thiesse asked about the drainage and discussed the grading throughout 
the site. The proposed location of the home is at the edge of the Upland Review Area; however, the 
deck will be within said zone, roughly 86 feet away from the edge of the wetlands. N. Pade informed 
the commission that a site walk of the property has been scheduled by the IWWA for Thursday, 
March 31, 2016 at 8:00 a.m. 
 
Stephen Veillette of 6 Mohawk Drive, Canton, CT, stated that he has no objection to the Mott’s 
proposed home and that he has never witnessed any drainage issues in the surrounding area.  
 
Keith Davis of 4 Mohawk Drive, Canton, CT, stated that he has no objection to the Mott’s proposed 
home and wanted to know if the utilities would be underground, which D. Mott confirmed.  
 
MOTION: Mr. Bondanza moved to continue the public hearing for File #445; Apln #1576 to the next 
Regular Meeting on April 20, 2016 at 7:30 p.m. in Room F of the Community Center. Mr. Thiesse 
seconded the motion, which passed unanimously. 

Rnarducci
Highlight
File #445; Apln #1576; 594 Albany Turnpike; Assessor’s Map 25; Parcel 1010594; Zone R-2;
Special Permit, Section 6.3.F.2, removal of trees 4” or greater in caliper within the Farmington
River Protection Overlay District; Section 7.5, earthwork and grading; and Section 9.1., Site
Plan Application; request to construct single family home; David and Jacqueline Mott,
applicants/owners – The property owners, David and Jacqueline Mott, were present in order to
provide background on the location of the proposed home and answer any questions the commission
had. D. Mott summarized the characteristics of the lot and the constraints that limit possible
development locations. J. Thiesse asked about the drainage and discussed the grading throughout
the site. The proposed location of the home is at the edge of the Upland Review Area; however, the
deck will be within said zone, roughly 86 feet away from the edge of the wetlands. N. Pade informed
the commission that a site walk of the property has been scheduled by the IWWA for Thursday,
March 31, 2016 at 8:00 a.m.
Stephen Veillette of 6 Mohawk Drive, Canton, CT, stated that he has no objection to the Mott’s
proposed home and that he has never witnessed any drainage issues in the surrounding area.
Keith Davis of 4 Mohawk Drive, Canton, CT, stated that he has no objection to the Mott’s proposed
home and wanted to know if the utilities would be underground, which D. Mott confirmed.
MOTION: Mr. Bondanza moved to continue the public hearing for File #445; Apln #1576 to the next
Regular Meeting on April 20, 2016 at 7:30 p.m. in Room F of the Community Center. Mr. Thiesse
seconded the motion, which passed unanimously.




2. File #76; Apln #1578; 146 Powder Mill Road; Assessor’s Map 25; Parcel 4310146; Zone I; 
Special Permits, Section 6.2.F.4, insignificant minor development in a floodway; Section 
7.7.B.3, fences and freestanding walls greater than 6 feet in height; and Site Plan Modification, 
Section 9.1.; request to install a 60 ft. x 100 ft. x 10 ft. chain link fence; Collinsville Auto Repair, 
LLC, applicant; Sack Properties, LLC, owner – Michael and Jennifer Rindflesh of 152 Carpenter 
Road, New Hartford, CT and the owners of Collinsville Auto Repair, LLC, were in attendance to 
present their application. At the regular meeting of the Zoning Board of Appeals on Monday, March 
14, 2016, the applicants received location approval for a used car dealer and general repairer license 
at the above referenced location. The commission reviewed and discussed the flood elevations on 
site, and determined that the proposed location of the fence is not within the flood plain. N. Pade 
stated that the property was previously approved for a used car dealer in 2004, and the fenced in 
area would be used to secure vehicles.  
 
MOTION: Mr. Evens moved to close the public hearing for File #76; Apln #1578. Mr. Baldwin 
seconded the motion, which passed unanimously.    

 
REGULAR MEETING 

 
PUBLIC HEARING ACTIONS: 
 
1. File #445; Apln #1576; 594 Albany Turnpike; Assessor’s Map 25; Parcel 1010594; Zone R-2; 

Special Permit, Section 6.3.F.2, removal of trees 4” or greater in caliper within the Farmington 
River Protection Overlay District; Section 7.5, earthwork and grading; and Section 9.1., Site 
Plan Application; request to construct single family home; David and Jacqueline Mott, 
applicants/owners – No action was taken. 
 

2. File #76; Apln #1578; 146 Powder Mill Road; Assessor’s Map 25; Parcel 4310146; Zone I; 
Special Permits, Section 6.2.F.4, insignificant minor development in a floodway; Section 
7.7.B.3, fences and freestanding walls greater than 6 feet in height; and Site Plan Modification, 
Section 9.1.; request to install a 60 ft. x 100 ft. x 10 ft. chain link fence; Collinsville Auto Repair, 
LLC, applicant; Sack Properties, LLC, owner 
 
MOTION: Mr. Thiesse moved to APPROVE File #76; Apln #1578; 146 Powder Mill Road; Assessor’s 
Map 25; Parcel 4310146; Zone I; Special Permits, Section 6.2.F.4, insignificant minor development in 
a floodway; Section 7.7.B.3, fences and freestanding walls greater than 6 feet in height; and Site Plan 
Modification, Section 9.1.; request to install a 60 ft. x 100 ft. x 10 ft. chain link fence; Collinsville Auto 
Repair, LLC, applicant; Sack Properties, LLC, owner. 
 
Based on the elevation information presented, the proposed location of the fence is not located within 
the flood fringe; therefore, a Special Permit for Section 6.2.F.4, insignificant minor development in a 
floodway, is not applicable. 

 
This approval is granted in accordance in accordance with the March 17, 2010 approval of 
automotive uses and the May 19, 2004 approval of used car dealers, inclusive of all documents, 
exhibits, findings and conditions. 

 
This approval is also granted based on the following submitted with plan(s) entitled: 

 
1. Sheet 1; Site Plan; 146 Powder Mill Road; Prepared by Hallisey, Pearson & Cassidy; Prepared 

for Collinsville Auto Repair, LLC; dated February 23, 2016 
 

In addition to the above-referenced plans, this approval is granted in accordance with the following 
documentation submitted by the applicant, or otherwise submitted to the Commission: 

                 
1. Town of Canton Planning/Zoning Development Application – File #76; Apln #1578; 146 Powder 

Mill Road; Assessor’s Map 25; Parcel 4310146; Zone I; Special Permits, Section 6.2.F.4, 



insignificant minor development in a floodway; Section 7.7.B.3, fences and freestanding walls 
greater than 6 feet in height; and Site Plan Modification, Section 9.1.; request to install a 60 ft. x 
100 ft. x 10 ft. chain link fence; Collinsville Auto Repair, LLC, applicant; Sack Properties, LLC, 
owner 

2. Copy of payment; check #11473 
3. Assessor’s card for 146 Powder Mill Road 
4. List of abutters 
5. Abutters map 
6. Flood Plain Management map 
7. Copy of the abutter notice sent to abutting property owners; dated 2/25/16 
8. Affidavit for posting of Public Hearing sign per Section 9.9.F of Zoning Regulations; dated 2/25/16 
9. Copy of the approval letter for the Zoning Commission File #76; Apln #1036; dated 6/8/04 
10. Copy of the WPCA Change of Location Application for 146 Powder Mill Road; dated 2/17/16 
11. Copy of the letter to Roger Ignazio from Jennifer Rindflesh regarding best management practices 

and pollution prevention at 146 Powder Mill Road; dated 2/23/16 
12. Copy of the letter to Jennifer Rindflesh from Roger Ignazio regarding review of her WPCA 

application; dated 2/29/16 
13. Certified mailing receipts 
14. Town of Canton legal notice 
15. Copy of municipal abutter notice to Town of New Hartford; dated 3/1/16 
16. Proof of legal notice from the Hartford Courant; dated 3/1/16 
17. Copy of the approval letter for Zoning Commission File #76; Apln #1270; dated 3/2/10 

 
This approval is effective April 5, 2016 (20 days from approval date) and UPON THE RECORDING 
OF THE FINAL MYLAR’S AS REQUIRED BELOW WITH THE TOWN CLERK.  
 
The Commission hereby grants this approval subject to the following conditions, modifications, 
restrictions, and safeguards: 

 
1. The above-referenced plans, as modified by these conditions, shall be placed on Mylar, bear all 

the conditions of all land use commissions, and stamped “APPROVED” and signed by the 
Planning and Zoning Commission (PZC) on a Town approved signature block. Said plans shall 
be filed by the applicant with the Town Planner and Town Clerk by April 5, 2017, which is within 
12 months of the effective date; The applicant/ developer must provide one (1) fixed line Mylar, 
and two (2) paper copies of each approved plan for signature by the Chairman and /or 
Secretary.  Maps to be filed on the land records of the Town Clerk must meet the following 
standards: 
Must be produced by 1) wash-off photographic polyester film, 2) fixed line photographic polyester 
film, 3) original ink drawing on polyester film or linen; the process used must be certified by a 
stamp in red indelible ink, 1” x 2”, and include name of producer and process used.  Polyester 
films (“Mylar”) must be matte on at least one side.  Maps shall be 24” x 36”. 

2. The conditions of the Commissions March 17, 2010 letter approval are incorporated by reference; 
3. The conditions of the Commission May 19, 2004 letter are incorporated by reference; and 
4. This approval shall be binding upon the applicant /developer, heirs, assigns, and grantees. 
  
Mr. Pane seconded the motion, which passed unanimously. 

 
OLD BUSINESS: None 
  
NEW BUSINESS:  
 
1. File #383; 59 Andrew Drive; Assessor’s Map 12; Parcel 1070059; Zone R-3; Modification of 

subdivision approval; request to establish an approved building lot; Blueberry Hill 
Partnership; applicant/owner – N. Pade provided an overview of the application and the history of 
the subdivision. At the time of approval, this particular lot was not established as an approved building 
lot, which was noted on the signed Mylars filed with the Town Clerk. In order to establish the site as a 



suitable building lot, the applicant was told to submit an application to the commission requesting a 
modification to the original subdivision approval. Mr. Thomas Shannon was present in order to 
discuss the application and answer any questions.  
 
MOTION: Mr. Bondanza moved to APPROVE File #383; 59 Andrew Drive; Assessor’s Map 12; 
Parcel 1070059; Zone R-3; Modification of subdivision approval; request to establish an approved 
building lot; Blueberry Hill Partnership; applicant/owner. 

 
This approval is granted in accordance with the October 3, 1988 approval, inclusive of all documents, 
exhibits, findings and conditions. 

 
This approval is also granted based on the following submitted with plan(s) entitled: 

 
1. Sheet 1; Feasibility Site Plan; 59 Andrew Drive; Prepared by Thomas H. Shannon; Prepared for 

Blueberry Hill Partnership; Dated May 12, 2015 
 

2. Sheet 2; Grading Plan; 59 Andrew Drive; Prepared by Alford Associates, Inc.; Prepared for 
Blueberry Hill Partnership; Dated December 12, 1986; Revised October 8, 1988 
 

In addition to the above-referenced plans, this approval is granted in accordance with the following 
documentation submitted by the applicant, or otherwise submitted to the Commission: 

  
1. Town of Canton Planning/Zoning Development Application – File #383; 59 Andrew Drive; 

Assessor’s Map 12; Parcel 1070059; Zone R-3; Modification of Subdivision Approval; request to 
establish an approved building lot; Blueberry Hill Partnership; applicant/owner 

2. GIS map for 59 Andrew Drive 
3. Copy of minutes from the regular meeting of the Canton Planning Commission; dated 10/3/88 
4. Letter from the FVHD to the Canton Planning Commission regarding lot conditions for the 

installation of a septic system; dated 8/25/88 
5. Letter from the FVHD to Blueberry Hill Partnership regarding the lot’s capability of supporting the 

installation of an on-site septic system; dated 6/16/15 
6. Letter from the FVHD to Blueberry Hill Partnership regarding the approval for installation of a 

septic system at 59 Andrew Drive; dated 10/7/15 
 

This approval is effective April 5, 2016 and upon the recording of the final Mylar’s as required below 
with the town clerk.  

 
The Commission hereby grants this approval subject to the following conditions, modifications, 
restrictions, and safeguards: 

 
1. The above-referenced plans, as modified by these conditions, shall be placed on Mylar, bear all 

the conditions of all land use commissions, and stamped “APPROVED” and signed by the 
Planning and Zoning Commission (PZC) on a Town approved signature block. Said plans shall 
be filed by the applicant with the Town Planner and Town Clerk by June 14, 2016, which is within 
90 days of the effective date (anticipated expiration of the appeal period); The applicant/ 
developer must provide one (1) fixed line Mylar, and two (2) paper copies of each approved plan 
for signature by the Chairman and /or Secretary.  Maps to be filed on the land records of the 
Town Clerk must meet the following standards: 
Must be produced by 1) wash-off photographic polyester film, 2) fixed line photographic polyester 
film, 3) original ink drawing on polyester film or linen; the process used must be certified by a 
stamp in red indelible ink, 1” x 2”, and include name of producer and process used.  Polyester 
films (“Mylar”) must be matte on at least one side.  Maps shall be 24” x 36”. 

2. The conditions of Farmington Valley Health Districts June 16, 2015 letter approval are 
incorporated by reference. 

3. The conditions of the Farmington Valley Health Districts October 7, 2015 letter are incorporated 
by reference. 



4. The Feasibility Site Plan shall be modified as follows: 
a. Shall include a Zoning Compliance Table 

5. This approval shall be binding upon the applicant/developer, heirs, assigns, and grantees. 
 

Mr. Thiesse seconded the motion, which passed unanimously. 
 
OTHER BUSINESS: 
 
MOTION: Mr. Thiesse moved to amend the agenda in order to discuss OTHER BUSINESS Item #6 first. 
Mr. Pane seconded the motion, which passed unanimously. 
 
1. Review minutes of the February 10, 2016 Special Meeting and February 17, 2016 Regular 

Meeting – The minutes were approved as presented.   

2. POCD Update – The customized PZC Implementation Tables were included in the meeting packet, 
along with a spreadsheet that summaries yearly progress to date. N. Pade and the commission 
reviewed specific sections of the customized tables in order to address areas in question and 
streamline the reporting process, which N. Pade began in the spreadsheet that was provided. 

3. Discussion of Possible Edits to Zoning Regulations – None  

4. Discussion of Design Regulations – A Special Meeting will be scheduled for Wednesday, April 6, 
2016 at 6:30 p.m.; location to be determined. 

5. Discussion of Subdivision Regulations Rewrite – N. Pade electronically distributed a revised draft 
to the subcommittee on March 4, 2016, and requests all additional comments by April 20, 2016. 

6. Review of communication from the Town Attorney regarding File #524; Shallot Meadow 
Subdivision and possible scheduling of a special meeting – N. Pade provided a brief overview of 
the situation and informed the commission of the Town Attorney’s recommendation to hold a joint 
meeting between the PZC and IWWA for the purpose of entering an Executive Session. A special 
meeting will be scheduled for Wednesday, March 30, 2016 at 7:00 p.m. 
 

7. Staff Reports: 
a. Town Planner’s Report – None 

b. ZEO Report – The ZEO Report was distributed to the Commission electronically prior to the 
meeting. 

 
ADJOURNMENT: 
 
MOTION: Mr. Thiesse moved to adjourn the meeting at 9:00 p.m. Mr. Evens seconded the motion, which 
passed unanimously.  
 



P
ro

d
u

ct(s): 
H

artford C
ourant, M

yP
ublicN

otices.com

A
d

S
ize(s):

1 C
olum

n, 300 x 250 P
ixels

R
u

n
 D

ate(s):
T

hursday, M
arch 03, 2016, T

hursday, M
arch 10, 2016

C
o

lo
r S

p
ec.

B
/W

 P
review

O
rder ID

:
4009983

P
age

1
of

2

3/1/2016 8:47:47 A
M

P
rinted:

G
R

O
S

S
 P

R
IC

E
 * :

$178.52

* A
gency C

om
m

ission not included

L
eg

al N
o

tice Z
o

n
ed

 D
aily

P
A

C
K

A
G

E
 N

A
M

E
:



O
rder ID

:
4009983

P
age

2
of

2

3/1/2016 8:47:47 A
M

P
rinted:

G
R

O
S

S
 P

R
IC

E
 * :

$178.52

* A
gency C

om
m

ission not included

L
eg

al N
o

tice Z
o

n
ed

 D
aily

P
A

C
K

A
G

E
 N

A
M

E
:



Legal Notice
Town of Canton

Planning & Zoning Commission

The Canton Planning and Zoning Commission will hold a public hearing at a regular meeting on
Wednesday, March 16, 2016 at 7:30 p.m. in Room F of the Canton Community Center, 40 Dyer Avenue,
Canton, CT for the following applications:

File #445; Apln #1576; 594 Albany Turnpike; Assessor’s Map 25; Parcel 1010594; Zone R-2; Special
Permit, Section 6.3.F.2, removal of trees 4” or greater in caliper within the Farmington River
Protection Overlay District; Section 7.5, earthwork and grading; and Site Plan Application, Section
9.1.; request to construct single family home; David and Jacqueline Mott, applicants/owners

File #76; Apln #1578; 146 Powder Mill Road; Assessor’s Map 25; Parcel 4310146; Zone I;
Special Permits, Section 6.2.F.4, insignificant minor development in a floodway; Section 7.7.B.3,
fences and freestanding walls greater than 6 feet in height; and Site Plan Modification, Section
9.1.; request to install a 60 ft. x 100 ft. x 10 ft. chain link fence; Collinsville Auto Repair, LLC,
applicant; Sack Properties, LLC, owner

This application is on file and available for public inspection in the Land Use Office, Canton Town Hall, 4
Market Street, Collinsville, CT, telephone 860-693-7856.

Dated at Canton, Connecticut, this 1
st

day of March 2016.

David Bondanza, Chairman
Philip Pane, Secretary

To be published twice in the Hartford Courant on Thursday, March 3, 2016 and Thursday, March 10,
2016.

Town of Canton Account Number: CU00254181











































































Exhibit List for:

File #5; Apln #1582; 150 Torrington Avenue; Assessor’s Map 30; Parcel 5300150; Zone R-1; Section
7.4.D.3.a., Special Permit; exemptions and modifications to outdoor lighting, and Section 9.1., Site Plan
Modification; request to install CCTV cameras, site lighting and security fencing; Metropolitan District
Commission, applicant/owner

List as of May 16, 2016

List of Drawings

1. Sheet 1 of 3; Site Electrical & Data Infrastructure Improvements; Canton and New Hartford; Prepared
by The Metropolitan District; Prepared for the Nepaug Dam & Collinsville Water Treatment Facility;
Dated October 27, 2015

2. Sheet 2 of 3; Site Electrical & Data Infrastructure Improvements; Canton and New Hartford; Prepared
by The Metropolitan District; Prepared for the Nepaug Dam & Collinsville Water Treatment Facility;
Dated October 27, 2015

3. Sheet 3 of 3; Site Electrical & Data Infrastructure Improvements; Canton and New Hartford; Prepared
by The Metropolitan District; Prepared for the Nepaug Dam & Collinsville Water Treatment Facility;
Dated October 27, 2015

Correspondence:

1. Town of Canton – Zoning Development Application for File #5; Apln #1582; 150 Torrington Avenue;
Assessor’s Map 30; Parcel 5300150; Zone R-1; Section 9.1., Site Plan Modification; request to install
CCTV cameras, site lighting and security fencing; Metropolitan District Commission, applicant/owner

2. Site plan application checklist
3. Email from Chris Levesque to Renee Narducci; dated 3/18/16
4. Narrative
5. HySecurity SlideDriver

TM
Slide Gate Operator sales slick

6. Chain link fence specifications; dated 5/28/03
7. Hapco light pole specifications
8. Lumark lighting specifications
9. Lumark lighting images (2 total)
10. Copy of approval letter for IWWA File #12-14-1118AA; dated 12/23/14
11. Copy of payment; check #32022740
12. Email from Neil Pade to Renee Narducci and Emily Anyzeski regarding application modifications;

dated 4/6/16
13. Email from Renee Narducci to Chris Levesque regarding application modifications; dated 4/8/16
14. Email from Chris Levesque to Renee Narducci regarding lighting information; dated 4/18/16
15. Cooper Lighting Photometric Survey; dated 4/18/16 (2 pages)
16. Abutter list
17. Sign affidavit; dated 4/22/16
18. Copy of the abutter notice; dated 4/25/16
19. Certificates of mailing
20. Draft minutes from the 4/20/16 PZC regular meeting
21. Town of Canton legal notice
22. Proof of legal notice from the Hartford Courant
23. Municipal abutter notices (2 total)
24. Email from Renee Narducci to Chris Levesque regarding requested additional information; 5/10/16

















































































































- 1 -

Exhibit List for:

File #402; Apln #1587; 143-145 Main Street; Assessor’s Map 38; Parcels 3590143; Zone B/CBD;
Special Permit, Section 6.1.E, uses allowed by Special Permit within the Collinsville Business Overlay
District; and Section 9.1., Site Plan Modification; request to rehabilitate the existing building into a multi-
unit dwelling; Russell Bush, applicant/owner

List as of May 16, 2016

Drawings:

1. Sheet #1; Schematic Site Plan; 143-145 Main Street; Prepared for Russell Bush; Prepared by David
Whitney Consulting Engineers, LLC; dated 8/6/07

2. Drawing #1; Perspectives; 143-145 Main Street; Prepared for Russell Bush
3. Drawing #2; Elevations; 143-145 Main Street; Prepared for Russell Bush
4. Drawing #3; First Floor Plan; 143-145 Main Street; Prepared for Russell Bush
5. Drawing #4; Second Floor Plan; 143-145 Main Street; Prepared for Russell Bush
6. Drawing #5; Foundation Plan; 143-145 Main Street; Prepared for Russell Bush
7. Drawing #6; Section Thru Bedroom Wing; 143-145 Main Street; Prepared for Russell Bush
8. Drawing #7; Section Thru Living Room; 143-145 Main Street; Prepared for Russell Bush
9. Drawing #8; Details; 143-145 Main Street; Prepared for Russell Bush

Correspondence:

1. Town of Canton Planning/Zoning Development Application – File #402; Apln #1587; 143-145 Main
Street; Assessor’s Map 38; Parcels 3590143; Zone B/CBD; Special Permit, Section 6.1.E, uses
allowed by Special Permit within the Collinsville Business Overlay District; and Section 9.1., Site Plan
Modification; request to rehabilitate the existing building into a multi-unit dwelling; Russell Bush,
applicant/owner

2. Copy payment; check #1009
3. Site Plan Application checklist
4. Special Permit Application checklist
5. Assessor’s card for 143-145 Main Street
6. Abutter map
7. List of abutters
8. Letter from Russell Bush to the PZC regarding the proposed scope of work; dated 3/28/16
9. Copy of letter from the CHDC to the Zoning Commission regarding the proposed scope of work;

dated 8/13/07
10. Copy of approval letter for File #402; Apln #1205; dated 11/15/07
11. Copy of approval letter for extension request for File #402; Apln #1205; dated 10/20/08
12. Email from Renee Narducci to Russell Bush regarding outstanding items; dated 4/11/16
13. Copy of the abutter notice; received by the Land Use Office on 4/20/16
14. Copy of certified mailing receipts
15. Town of Canton WPCA Capacity Review Application; dated 4/20/16
16. Letter from WPCA Superintendent Roger Ignazio to Russell Bush regarding future sewer connection;

dated 4/25/16
17. Draft minutes from the 4/20/16 PZC regular meeting
18. Picture of the public hearing sign located on the property; received 5/3/16
19. Signed public hearing affidavit; dated 5/5/16
20. Signed certification of notice; dated 5/5/16











































































































   
AGENDA 

 
 

DRAFT MINUTES 
 

Special Meeting 
Canton Planning & Zoning Commission and Inland Wetlands & Watercourses Agency 

Thursday, April 14, 2016 at 6:00 p.m. 
Library Community Center, Room F  

40 Dyer Avenue, Canton, CT 
 
 
CALL TO ORDER: The Special Meeting of the Canton Planning & Zoning Commission and Inland 
Wetlands & Watercourses Agency on April 14, 2016 was called to order at 6:04 p.m.  
 
PRESENT: Jonathan Thiesse, Phil Pane, David Evens, Lansford Perry, David Shepard, Rich 
Vandebogart, David Sinish, and Al Bombassei 
 

ABSENT: David Bondanza, Kevin Baldwin, David Freeman, John Huyghebaert, Bill Sarmuk, Keith 
August and Robert Bahre 
 
ALSO PRESENT: Town Attorney Kenneth Slater, Town Planner Neil Pade and Assistant Town Planner 
Emily Anyzeski 

 
Quorums of both commissions are present. 

 
 

EXECUTIVE SESSION: 
 
1. (Pending Litigation): Legal claims and possible enforcement options pertaining to Shallot 

Meadow Subdivision (File #524) and 188 Bahre Corner Road 
 

MOTION: D. Shepard moved to enter into Executive Session at 6:05 p.m. for the purposes of 
discussing (Pending Litigation): Legal claims and possible enforcement options pertaining to Shallot 
Meadow Subdivision (File #524) and 188 Bahre Corner Road. D. Sinish seconded the motion, which 
passed unanimously 8-0-0.  

 
MOTION: D. Shepard moved to exit Executive Session at 6:42 p.m. J. Thiesse seconded the motion, 
which passed unanimously 8-0-0.  
 
 

ADJOURNMENT: 
 
MOTION: D. Shepard moved to adjourn the meeting at 6:47 p.m. J. Thiesse seconded the motion, which 
passed unanimously 8-0-0. 
 
 



   
 
 
 

DRAFT MINUTES 
Regular Meeting  

 Canton Planning and Zoning Commission 
Wednesday, April 20, 2016 at 7:30 pm 

Community Center, Room F 
40 Dyer Avenue, Canton, CT 

 
 
CALL TO ORDER: The Regular Meeting of Canton Planning & Zoning Commission on April 20, 2016 
was called to order at 7:32 p.m. 
 
PRESENT: Jonathan Thiesse, David Evens, John Huyghebaert, Phil Pane, David Bondanza, Lansford 
Perry and Kevin Baldwin 
 
ABSENT: David Freeman, Bill Sarmuk and Keith August 
 
ALSO PRESENT: Town Planner Neil Pade, Project Administrator George Wallace, Director of Public 
Works Robert Martin and Land Use Coordinator Renee Narducci 
 
A quorum of the Commission is present. 
 
Mr. Baldwin is hereby seated for Mr. August. 
 
MODIFICATION OF AGENDA: None 
 
 

PUBLIC HEARINGS 
 
READING OF THE LEGAL NOTICE: Read by Mr. Pane. 
 
1. File #445; Apln #1576; 594 Albany Turnpike; Assessor’s Map 25; Parcel 1010594; Zone R-2; 

Special Permit, Section 6.3.F.2, removal of trees 4” or greater in caliper within the Farmington 
River Protection Overlay District; Section 7.5, earthwork and grading; and Section 9.1., Site 
Plan Application; request to construct single family home; David and Jacqueline Mott, 
applicants/owners 

 
COMMISSIONERS SEATED: Jonathan Thiesse, David Evens, John Huyghebaert, Phil Pane, David 
Bondanza, Lansford Perry and Kevin Baldwin 

 
The property owners, David and Jacqueline Mott, were present in order to answer any questions the 
commission had and discuss the revised site plan. The revised site plan depicts an alternate location 
of the footing drain, which has been moved outside of the FRPOD. A new aerial image was also 
provided in order to more accurately depict which trees would be removed prior to construction. N. 
Pade informed the Commission that the IWWA had continued their meeting until May 12, 2016; 
therefore, the Planning and Zoning Commission could either close the public hearing this evening or 
have it continue until May 18, 2016. Mr. Mott stated that the footing drain was relocated due to 
concerns from the IWWA, which is now behind the 100 foot set back line for the FRPOD. Mr. Mott 
also stated that he would be willing to consider a rain garden if requested by the Commission, along 
with the replanting of native species.  
 
Sara Faulkner of 25 Dyer Avenue, Canton, CT, stated that the Conservation Commission has this 
application on their agenda for next week and a recommendation will follow. She stated that she is 



concerned with a structure being built near the Farmington River Protection Overlay District and the 
effects that might occur to the natural resources. A letter was provided to the Commission in writing 
regarding her concerns. Ms. Faulkner is Chair of the Conservation Commission and expressing her 
opposition prior to her commission’s review was of concern to the Planning and Zoning Commission. 
 
Stephen Veillette of 6 Mohawk Drive, Canton, CT, stated that his house was built on the same 
ridgeline in 1982 and he has never had any issues or complaints. Mr. Veillette expressed his support 
of the Mott’s and their efforts to do the best they can with the property.  
 
MOTION: Mr. Evens moved to continue the public hearing for File #445; Apln #1576 to the next 
Regular Meeting on May 18, 2016 at 7:30 p.m. in Room F of the Community Center. Mr. Thiesse 
seconded the motion, which passed unanimously. 

 
Mr. Bondanza and Mr. Evens recused themselves at 7:59 p.m., and Mr. Thiesse took over as acting 
Chairman. 
 
2. File #218; Apln #1580; 14 Canton Springs Road; Assessor’s Map 31; Parcel 1640014; Zone 

MCPF; Special Permit, Section 6.4.E.10, enlargement of Special Permit within a MCPF zone; 
request for the Canton Volunteer Fire Company to increase the number of events in which 
alcohol sales are permitted; Corey Russo, applicant; Canton Volunteer Fire Company, owner   

 
COMMISSIONERS SEATED: Jonathan Thiesse, John Huyghebaert, Phil Pane, Lansford Perry and 
Kevin Baldwin 

 
Mr. Corey Russo was present in order to provide background on the application and answer any 
questions the Commission had. At this time, the Canton Volunteer Fire Company is only allotted two 
events per year in which alcohol sales are permitted. In order to host more events, including the 
relocation of the Blues and Brews Fest from its original location on Powder Mill Road, the applicant is 
looking to increase the number of permitted annual events to six. N. Pade stated that the approval 
could be a modification of the 2010 approval, which could potentially include additional conditions. Mr. 
Russo stated that he has not received any complaints regarding annual events within the 35 years he 
has been with the Canton Volunteer Fire Company. K. Baldwin discussed the duration of the 
additional events being requested and whether or not the approval should be limited to non-profit 
organizations.  
 
MOTION: Mr. Baldwin moved to close the public hearing for File #218; Apln #1580. Mr. Perry 
seconded the motion, which passed unanimously.  

 
 

REGULAR MEETING 
 

PUBLIC HEARING ACTIONS: 
 
1. File #445; Apln #1576; 594 Albany Turnpike; Assessor’s Map 25; Parcel 1010594; Zone R-2; 

Special Permit, Section 6.3.F.2, removal of trees 4” or greater in caliper within the Farmington 
River Protection Overlay District; Section 7.5, earthwork and grading; and Section 9.1., Site 
Plan Application; request to construct single family home; David and Jacqueline Mott, 
applicants/owners – No action was taken. 
 

2. File #218; Apln #1580; 14 Canton Springs Road; Assessor’s Map 31; Parcel 1640014; Zone 
MCPF; Special Permit, Section 6.4.E.10, enlargement of Special Permit within a MCPF zone; 
request for the Canton Volunteer Fire Company to increase the number of events in which 
alcohol sales are permitted; Corey Russo, applicant; Canton Volunteer Fire Company, owner 

 
MOTION: Mr. Baldwin made a motion to amend the April 21, 2010 approval for 14 Canton Springs 
Road (File #218; Apln #1280; 14 Canton Springs Road; Assessor’s Map 4-3; Lots 14 & 97; Zone 



AR1; Special Exception Section 66.3 Standards for the Sale of Alcoholic Beverages; Canton 
Volunteer Fire Company, Inc., applicant/owner), to include two additional stipulations.  
 
This approval is granted in part on the application submitted on March 16, 2016, testimony received 
at a public hearing commenced on April 20, 2016 and closed on that date; and upon the following 
documentation submitted by the Applicant or others during the course of the proceedings on the 
application: 
 
Correspondence: 
1. Town of Canton Planning/Zoning Development Application – File #218; Apln #1580; 14 Canton 

Springs Road; Assessor’s Map 31; Parcel 1640014; Zone MCPF; Special Permit, Section 6.4.E.10, 
enlargement of Special Permit within a MCPF zone; request for the Canton Volunteer Fire Company 
to increase the number of events in which alcohol sales are permitted; Corey Russo, applicant; 
Canton Volunteer Fire Company, owner 

2. Special Permit Application checklist 
3. Copy of deed for 14 Canton Springs Road 
4. Letter from the Canton Volunteer Fire Company providing an overview of their application and 

intent; dated 3/15/16 
5. Abutter map 
6. List of abutters 
7. Copy of the abutter notice; dated 3/16/16; received by Land Use on 3/21/16 
8. Certification of Notice for posting of public hearing sign per Section 9.9.F of Zoning Regulations; 

dated 3/16/16 
9. Assessor’s card for 14 Canton Springs Road 
10. Copy of approval letter for Zoning Commission File #218; Apln #1280; dated 5/7/10 
11. Certified mailing receipts 
12. Town of Canton legal notice 
13. Proof of legal notice from the Hartford Courant; dated 4/4/16  

 
This approval with conditions and modifications is granted because the Commission finds that the 
application, as conditioned and modified by and inclusive of the stipulations of this approval, would 
comply with the following: 

 
1. Section 6.4.E.10 – Enlargement of Special Permit within a MCPF Zone 
 
This approval is effective May 10, 2016 (20 days from approval date) and UPON THE RECORDING 
OF AN APPROVAL LETTER/CERTIFICATE OF ACTION WITH THE TOWN CLERK.  
 
The Commission hereby grants this approval subject to the following conditions, modifications, 
restrictions, and safeguards: 
 
1. Litter, refuse, and debris from the site and or generated from events on the site and found in 

surrounding areas shall be quickly removed; 
2. This approval shall be binding upon the applicant/developer, heirs, assigns, and grantees.  
3. The 500 foot separating distance from a school, library or church is hereby waived  per Section 

8.5.B.2; 
4. Limited to 2 (two) annual events: Lobsterfest (3 consecutive days) and Sam Collins Day (1 day); 
5. An additional 4 (four) annual events not to exceed 3 (three) consecutive days each; and 
6. The events are limited to Not for Profit organizations. 

 
Mr. Perry seconded the motion, which passed 4-0-1. Mr. Pane abstained. 
 

 
OLD BUSINESS: None 
 



NEW BUSINESS:  
 
Mr. Bondanza and Mr. Evens returned at 8:25 p.m., and Mr. Bondanza resumed as Chairman. 
 
1. File #5; Apln #1582; 150 Torrington Avenue; Assessor’s Map 30; Parcel 5300150; Zone R-1; 

Section 9.1., Site Plan Modification; request to install CCTV cameras, site lighting and security 
fencing; Metropolitan District Commission, applicant/owner – N. Pade stated that upon review of this 
application, it was noted that the submittal did not include a photometric survey, which is required by 
Section 7.4.C.10 and the details indicate the light pole would be approximately 25’ in height. Based on 
current zoning regulations, the height of a light pole may only exceed the limit of 15’ by Special Permit 
under Section 7.4.D.3.a. The applicant has been advised to amend their application to include a request 
for the above referenced special permit, as well as to include the required photometric survey. 

 
MOTION: Mr. Perry moved that the Commission finds File #5, Apln #1582 at 150 Torrington Avenue 
to be a special permit application. The applicant is advised to modify the application form to include a 
request for Special Permit Section 7.4.D.3.a, and to schedule a public hearing for May 18, 2016. Mr. 
Thiesse seconded the motion, which passed unanimously. 

 
2. File #402; Apln #1587; 143+145 Main Street; Assessor’s Map 38; Parcels 3590143; Zone B; Special 

Permit, Section 6.1.E, uses allowed by Special Permit within the Collinsville Business Overlay 
District; and Section 9.1., Site Plan Modification; request to rehabilitate the existing building into a 
multi-unit dwelling; Russell Bush, applicant/owner – N. Pade provided an overview of the application 
and informed the Commission that this is a re-submittal from a similar application in 2007. At this time, the 
applicant’s proposed concept requires review from the Water Pollution Control Authority and the 
Connecticut Water Company, as well as recommended consultation from the Collinsville Historic District 
Commission. The Commission is receiving the application this evening and will need to schedule a public 
hearing.  

 
MOTION: Mr. Thiesse moved that File #402, Apln #1587 is hereby received and to schedule a public 
hearing for May 18, 2016, as well as to refer this application to the Collinsville Historic District 
Commission with a request for comments before said public hearing. Mr. Evens seconded the motion, 
which passed unanimously.  

 
3. Pre-Application Review; File #447; Apln #1591; 39 Gildersleeve Avenue; Assessor’s Map 34; 

Parcel 2810039; Zone R-1; Special Permit, Section 3.3.D.1.B, detached accessory dwelling; 
Danielle Boros, applicant/owner – N. Pade provided an overview of the pre-application and his recent 
meeting with the applicant’s surveyor. The applicant is looking to build a detached accessory dwelling, 
which would then become the primary dwelling. By doing so, the current home, which is an existing non-
confirming structure, would thus become the accessory dwelling. Prior to submitting a formal application 
before the Commission, it was recommended that a pre-application be submitted to in order to hear the 
Commissions thoughts. It was recommended by the Commission that N. Pade contact the Town Attorney 
in order to seek his advice and provide said guidance to the applicant.  

 
4. Referral #379; Review and report to the Board of Selectman on the concept of rebuilding the 

Public Works Facility at its current location and other site improvements including possible 
changes to the ballfield, roadway, and bike trail and river access; 50 Old River Road; Parcel 
#4060050, as referenced in the memorandum from Robert Skinner, Chief Administrative Officer; 
dated April 14, 2016 – N. Pade provided an overview of the referral, and both the Project Administrator 
and Director of Public Works were present in order to provide input and answer questions. An informal 
review of the proposed concept was presented to the Commission on February 17, 2016, and prior to any 
discussion, N. Pade provided an overview of the 8-24 referral process. The Commissioners expressed 
their opinions on the concept and since this was not a public hearing, public comment was not permitted. 
Mr. Wallace provided clarification on the issue regarding line of sight with the proposed driveway and 
traffic on Route 179.  Mr. Thiesse provided an overview of past applications and concepts outlined 
throughout the POCD, including limitation, the reality of the situation and more. Mr. Perry noted that 
previous attempts to relocate the garage have been extremely difficult and received tremendous 



pushback from people who do not want the facility in their backyard. He also expressed how the 
redevelopment of this site will allow not only for a new garage, but improved recreational facilities and 
public access to the Farmington River. Mr. Wallace provided insight on a similar project that recently 
occurred in Norwich, where the DEEP approved a DPW facility on the river in a flood plain. Mr. Pane 
expressed a concern for the potential expansion of the sewer treatment plant in the future, and how that 
would affect the proposed redevelopment of the site. Mr. Bondanza acknowledged the letter received by 
the Conservation and shared his thoughts with the Commission.  

 
MOTION: Mr. Bondanza made a motion to issue a positive report under CGS 8-24 to the Board of 
Selectmen for Referral #379; Review and report to the Board of Selectman on the concept of 
rebuilding the Public Works Facility at its current location and other site improvements including 
possible changes to the ballfield, roadway, and bike trail and river access; 50 Old River Road; Parcel 
#4060050; and incorporating the Staff Report by Neil Pade dated April 18, 2016, tonight’s recording 
of Commissioner comments, and the exhibit handed out. Mr. Thiesse seconded the motion, which 
passed 6-0-1. Mr. Pane abstained.  

 
OTHER BUSINESS: 
 
MOTION: Mr. Bondanza moved to amend the agenda in order to discuss OTHER BUSINESS Item #2 
first. Mr. Evens seconded the motion, which passed unanimously. 
 
1. Review minutes of the March 16, 2016 Regular Meeting and March 31, 2016 Special Meeting – 

The minutes were approved as presented.   

2. Discussion of Replacement Signage at 192 Albany Turnpike – N. Pade provided an overview of 
the sign application that was submitted to the Zoning Enforcement Officer, and the need for 
clarification regarding the lack of dimensional letters. The Commission determined that since the sign 
is an existing, non-conforming structure that no special permit is required and the need for 
dimensional lettering based on current zoning regulations is not necessary.  

3. Discussion of Possible Edits to Zoning Regulations – None 

4. Discussion of Design Regulations – A Special Meeting will be scheduled for Wednesday, May 4, 
2016 at 6:30 p.m.; location to be determined. 

5. Discussion of Subdivision Regulations Rewrite – N. Pade is working with George Wallace on the 
Public Improvement Standards and is still waiting on comments from the sub-committee regarding the 
Subdivision Regulations re-write. 

6. Staff Reports: 
a. Town Planner’s Report – N. Pade discussed the Conservation Commission’s concern with the 

lack of applications that are being offered for review. It was noted that said Commission would 
like to review applications and provide feedback to the Planning and Zoning Commission before a 
decision is rendered. There was a general consensus among the Commission that the 
procedures in place seem adequate and at this time no additional changes to protocol are 
necessary. 

b. ZEO Report – The ZEO Report was distributed to the Commission prior to the start of the 
meeting. 

 
ADJOURNMENT: 
 
MOTION: Mr. Bondanza moved to adjourn the meeting at 9:50 p.m. Mr. Evens seconded the motion, 
which passed unanimously.  
 
 



   
 
 
 

DRAFT MINUTES 
Special Meeting  

 Canton Planning and Zoning Commission 
Wednesday, May 4, 2016 at 6:30 p.m. 

Community Center, Room F 
40 Dyer Avenue, Canton, CT 

 
CALL TO ORDER: The Special Meeting of the Canton Planning and Zoning Commission on May 4, 2016 
was called to order at 7:12 p.m. 
 
PRESENT: David Evens, Jonathan Thiesse, Kevin Baldwin and Lansford Perry  
ABSENT: Keith August, William Sarmuk, John Huyghebaert, Phil Pane and David Bondanza 
ALSO PRESENT: Town Planner Neil Pade and Land Use Coordinator Renee Narducci 
 
Mr. Baldwin was seated for Mr. August. 
 
A quorum of the Commission is present. 

 
REGULAR MEETING 

                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                         
OTHER BUSINESS: 
 
1. Discussion of Design Regulations, Canton Design Village Districts, Form-Based Code – The 

Commission reviewed section six of the draft Form-Based Code, which pertains to Architectural 
Standards, and made various changes throughout. A follow-up meeting will be scheduled at the next 
regular meeting of the Planning and Zoning Commission on May 18, 2016.  

 
ADJOURNMENT: 
 
MOTION: Mr. Evens moved to adjourn the meeting at 8:50 p.m. Mr. Thiesse seconded the motion, which 
passed unanimously 4-0-0.  
 
 














	05-18-16 PZC Agenda
	Working Notes
	File 445; Apln 1576
	File 5; Apln 1582
	File 402; Apln 1587
	04-14-16 Joint Meeting Minutes
	04-20-16 PZC Meeting Minutes
	05-04-16 PZC Special Meeting Minutes
	Correspondence from Town Attorney

